
September 9, 2014  

 1

 
 
BOROUGH OF BOUND BROOK      
AGENDA MEETING MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 
 
Mayor Mark Hasting called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
A reading of the Open Public Meetings Law Statement followed and   
Opening Prayer read by the Borough Clerk followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance.  
 
ROLL CALL 
Mayor Mark Hasting     present     
Councilman  John Paul Levin   present          
Councilman Daniel Wright   absent        
Councilman Vinnie Petti    present    
Councilwoman Lisa Bogart    present  
Councilwoman Beverly Pranzatelli  present   
Councilman Peter Lazzaro    present      
Also Present:  
Randy Bahr, Administrator   
Donna Marie Godleski, Borough Clerk  
Borough Attorney- Judy Verrone Esq. DeCotiis, Fitzpatrick, 
Cole, LLP,  
Police Chief Michael Jannone –Police Department  
 
Mayor Hasting called for an executive session at 7:30 p.m. for anticipated 
litigation.  
Motion moved by C. Bogart; second by C. Levin; All in favor: Ayes  
Executive session closed at 7:45 p.m.  
Agenda meeting opened.  
   
 Approval of Minutes:   
August 12, 2014 Executive Session Minutes For Content Only 
August 26, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 
August 26, 2014 Executive Session Minutes for Content Only  
Motion: C. Bogart  Second: C. Levin  All in Favor:  Ayes  
 
 
  
 



September 9, 2014  

 2

 
 
Engineers Report – T&M Associates – August 1- 31-2014  
Dale Leubner reported : Army Corp Project- Segment T Levee- 
The project is going very well.  He was told today that Diversion Pipe is 
delayed to October 7th.  
Rob Keady reported:  
The 2013  road program will begin in two weeks.     
The 2015 NJDOT Municipal Aid Grants announced are due October 14.  
Mr. Keady suggested continuing with Church Street or Thompson Avenue 
Union to High Street or Clearview Place Union to Maple Avenue.  
The consensus of council agreed to move forward with Thompson Avenue 
Union to High Street.  
He gave an update on the research of Quiet Zones.  He met with DOT and 
Mr. Bahr.  NJDOT indicated that a quiet zone is feasible; however, they 
indicated that the Borough should review impacts to determine if you wish 
to proceed.  Costs stem from both the insurance increases and 
improvements.  
Mr. Bahr will review with the borough risk manager. Mr. Bahr will review 
with Risk Manager.  
 
Presentation of communications, petitions, etc.   
Mayor Hasting read the following proclamations into the record of minutes.  
 Proclamation – Home Depot –Donation of materials to create planting 

beds around trees on Main and Hamilton Streets 
 Proclamation- Visit by Costa Rican President-Luis Guillermo Solis  

 on September 21, 2014- Celebration of Costa Rican Independence 
 Day   
 
Greetings for comments and invitation for discussion  
Carol Holub- 518 West Second Street  
She asked the engineer if the underpass gate is all fixed.  Dale Leubner 
advised that the south main gate is all resolved.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



September 9, 2014  

 3

 
 
 
Robert Fazen-571 Watchung Road 
He noted that on the agenda the council will be voting on an ordinance for 
the Queens Gate Agreement for a twenty year term with annual service 
charge based on 10% of annual gross revenues from the project and 
gradually increases over the term in accordance with tax exemption law.  
He asked if this was correct and that they will be paying 10% of annual 
gross revenue in lieu of taxes.  He wanted to know if the town compared this 
with estimated taxes so it benefits the residents and was this best deal.  
Mayor Hasting advised that is correct the town will receive payment in lieu 
of taxes; of 10% of gross revenues.  
The town would receive money in excess of our expected taxes based on the 
pilot and the town will receive more money through a tax program.  
Mr. Fazen addressed a spelling correction in Section 4F of the SID 
Ordinance on the agenda.  Grants or lawns should be loans.  
Mayor Hasting advised the spelling will be corrected.  
 
Carol Holub-518 West Second Street  
She asked for an explanation on Ordinance 2014-09. 
Mayor Hasting advised we have an existing historic preservation ordinance 
on the books and this is an amendment to the ordinance. 
Judy Verrone, borough attorney gave a summary.  The changes were 
membership and escrow.  
 
Robert Fazen-571 Watchung Road  
He advised that the Class A and Class B members do not have to be citizens 
of Bound Brook.    
 
Scott Kinney- Resides in Bridgewater- Business owner - 219 East Main 
Street  
He stated that he attended a council meeting two months ago asking for help 
downtown.   The town lost two businesses on this block.  
He advised of a fabrication shop at 223 East Main operating without a 
variance.  This shop has 34 foot long-8 ton trucks loading.  He asked that the 
town enforce their ordinances.  He was told this was a zoning issue but 
reading the ordinance it is the duty of the police department to enforce this 
provision.   He noted the businesses need help downtown.  
 



September 9, 2014  

 4

 
Advertised hearings or special presentations – 
 
 Bound Brook School District-  

Special School District Election to be held on September 30, 2014 for 
consideration of a school bond proposal. 
Dr. Gallagher, Superintendent thanked the council for allowing the school to 
give a presentation.  He advised that currently we have 1845 students, a 300 
student growth over a three year period.  The school made application to the 
state for two bonds.  The Bond Proposal No. 1 is for 27 million to purchase 
two buildings; the Lamonte School Annex formerly known as St. Mary’s 
School and the Community School formerly known as St. Joseph’s School.   
This bond will also undertake various improvements and renovations to the 
High School, Smalley Middle School, Lafayette School and Lamonte 
School.  The school will receive aid from the State of New Jersey at the rate 
of 62.7%.  The timing is very good as the school has 1.3 million in savings,   
so there will be no tax impact.  
The Bond Proposal No. 2 is for 3 million to undertake the construction of a 
Community Physical Education Center on vacant land at the LaMonte Field. 
Dr. Gallagher asked for the governing body’s support.   
Mr. Donnelly, Business Administrator handed out documents outlining the 
financial package.  He noted that all number were from outside sources. 
There will be an $18.00 increase with the second proposal.  
Mr. Donnelly asked for the governing body’s support.  
Mayor Hasting stated that he supports the bond proposals and does hope that 
both will pass.  
 
 Notice of Charges-Opportunity for a Hearing- 

Bound Brook Hotel LLC-507 East Main Street 
Plenary Retail Consumption License No. 1804-33-021-004  
Judy Verrone, borough attorney provided a summary.  The licensee was 
assigned a disciplinary hearing for a notice of eleven (11) charges served.  
The licensee entered a not guilty plea and the hearing is before us this 
evening.   
Present is Mr. Robert Scrivo of McElroy, Deutsch, Mulvaney & Carpenter  
Special prosecutor for the town for this matter.   
Also present is Barry Rosenberg of Abrams, Gran, Hendrick, Reina & 
Rosenberg, attorney for the license holder. 
Also present is Mark Mondrone, principal holder of the Bound Brook Hotel.  
 



September 9, 2014  

 5

Mr. Scrivo advised that in discussions prior to the hearing with the town and 
the police department the following settlement is recommended of the 
disciplinary charges: 
The eleven (11) disciplinary charges will be held in abeyance for a period of 
six (6) months.  If during such six-month period, the licensee has operated in 
full compliance with agreement, the charges shall be dismissed.  If, however, 
during such six-month period, licensee has violated any terms of the 
agreement, the disciplinary charges shall be re-activated and a hearing shall 
be held on charges and such other charges as may then be pending.  
Licensee agrees to a three-day suspension.  Those dates are September 21, 
2014, October 26, 2014 and November 30, 2014.  Licensee agrees to 
reimburse the borough for costs of investigation in the amount of $300.00.  
Mr. Rosenberg stated that those terms are correct.  
The borough attorney Judy Verrone asked if there were any questions 
regarding the proposed settlement.  There were none.  
She addressed the one date of September 21 for closing which is before the 
next council meeting.   
A motion to accept the settlement proposal placed on the record by 
Mr. Scrivo with the September 21 to be adhered to by formal resolution for 
the next council meeting.  
Mr. Rosenberg advised that those terms are correct.   
The borough attorney asked if there were any questions on the proposed 
settlement.  There were none.  
Motion to accept settlement proposal placed on record by Mr. Scrivo with 
the September 21 date be adhered along with a formal resolution for the next 
meeting.  
Motion moved by C. Bogart; second by C. Petti; All in favor: Ayes 
 
Opening of bids  - none   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



September 9, 2014  

 6

 
 
 
Introduction of ordinances   -  First Reading  
 

BOROUGH OF BOUND BROOK 
County of Somerset 

 
     ORDINANCE NO. 2014:07 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOROUGH OF BOUND BROOK, COUNTY OF 
SOMERSET, NEW JERSEY APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND 
BOROUGH CLERK, PURSUANT TO N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 ET SEQ., TO EXECUTE A 
FINANCIAL AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE BOROUGH OF BOUND 
BROOK AND QUEENS GATE APARTMENTS URBAN RENEWAL, LLC FOR 
PROPERTY LOCATED ON LOT 1.02 IN BLOCK 68 AS SHOWN ON THE 
OFFICIAL TAX MAP OF THE BOROUGH OF BOUND BROOK AND LOCATED IN 
THE TEA STREET/MIDDLE BROOK REDEVELOPMENT AREA 
Motion: C. Levin   Second: C. Bogart  
Summary: C. Levin asked how it benefits the town.  Mayor Hasting stated 
this is a financial agreement between the borough and Queens Gate. 
The borough will receive 10% of their gross revenue and assuming full 
occupancy the borough will receive close to $117,000 and over the life of 
the agreement one million to the borough.   
Mr. Bahr advised that in time year 20 it will be 100% taxes.  
Roll Call: unanimous 
C. John Paul Levin_y__C.  Daniel Wright absent___C. Vinnie Petti __y_ 
C. Lisa Bogart _y__C. Beverly Pranzatelli_y___C. Peter Lazzaro_y___ 
Second Reading:  September 23, 2014  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



September 9, 2014  

 7

 
 
 

BOROUGH OF BOUND BROOK 
County of Somerset 

 
                

ORDINANCE NO. 2014:08 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING Section 2-55, SPECIAL 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, OF THE REVISED GENERAL ORDINANCES OF THE 
BOROUGH OF BOUND BROOK.   
Motion:  C. Pranzatelli   second: C. Lazzaro   
Discussion:  Councilman Levin asked for an explanation what the SID is, 
how this benefits the town and the process of taxation on the business 
owners.  He expressed concerns as to the proper time to implement without 
having an active chamber of commerce in town.  He asked if we approached 
the business owners and property owners as to what their thoughts are. 
Councilwoman Pranzatelli advised that we have talked to property owners 
and business owners and they are interested in being part of the SID.  
Those that are not interested have an opportunity to come to the meeting.  
This is just an introduction.   She stated this is what our downtown needs to 
be focused on.  A SID is a good way to do it.  The SID is made up primarily 
of business and property owners.   The district management board consists 
of one councilmember, two residents, three property owners and three 
business owners.  They also have smaller groups of volunteers working on 
marketing, safety, beautification and events.  
This is very important as our town does not have the manpower to do all that 
needs to be done.  
C. Levin asked how the money is to be spent.   C. Pranzatelli stated that it is 
up to the district management board.  Their budget goes to the council every 
year so there is oversight.  
C. Pranzatelli advised that “Downtown New Jersey” is a non profit that 
works on these issues and they have an excellent explanation of the SID.  
She will have this information at the next meeting agenda for the public.  
C. Levin agreed that a SID is a useful tool and could possibly be useful in  
our town.  He felt that the timing was not right since we have no active 
Chamber of Commerce.   He brought up Mr. Kinney, a business owner  
owner with his concerns.  C. Pranzatelli stated that this is a good time so we 
can focus on this downtown.  She brought up that the SID was discussed in 
May to the governing body and the council voted to have our attorney 



September 9, 2014  

 8

amend the ordinance.  She addressed to C. Levin that in May would have 
been the time to bring up all his concerns, rather than now.  She began 
talking with the downtown the beginning of the summer.   
C. Levin stated that he agreed that we started talking about the SID in May.  
He stated that he has been asking questions before that and some of the 
answers were still not received.   
Mayor Hasting stated that he share those concerns.   A concern was the 
involvement of property owners and residents to make this work.   
He noted that what we are doing right now is not working.  He was willing 
to try this for positive for our town.  
C. Levin asked when this would start.  Mr. Bahr replied the last half of 2015.   
C. Pranzatelli advised the impact would be one quarter percent increase 
resulting in $500 per year.  She advised that it could be even less. 
Roll Call:  
C. John Paul Levin y___C.  Daniel Wright absent ___C. Vinnie Petti _y__ 
C. Lisa Bogart _y__C. Beverly Pranzatelli_y___C. Peter Lazzaro_y___ 
Second Reading scheduled for October 14, 2014.  
 
 

BOROUGH OF BOUND BROOK 
County of Somerset 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2014:09 

        
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 
XXIV, HISTORIC PRESERVATION, OF THE REVISED GENERAL 
ORDINANCES OF THE BOROUGH OF BOUND BROOK  

 
Motion:  C. Bogart  Second: C. Pranzatelli  
Discussion:  Judy Verrone, borough attorney advised that Section 24.6.3 
Procedure b.2 regarding escrow is blank and a number is required. 
C. Bogart suggested $1,500.  Mr. Bahr agreed on the amount.   
The consensus of the full council agreed.  C. Pranzatelli expressed concerns 
on the funding commission.  Mr. Bahr advised there is a budget line item.  
Mayor Hasting stated that he doubts it will be funded this year; we are 
looking at next year. 
Roll Call:  
C. John Paul Levin_y__C.  Daniel Wright absent  C. Vinnie Petti y___ 
C. Lisa Bogart _y__C. Beverly Pranzatelli_y__C. Peter Lazzaro__y__ 
 
 



September 9, 2014  

 9

 
 
 
Ordinance on Final Reading and Consideration: -   None  
 
 
Introduction/Discussion of Resolutions:   
R2014: 127 
Authorize the police department promotion process   
Motion: C. Bogart   Second: C. Pranzatelli  All in favor: Ayes  
 
R2014:  128-   
Approve 2014 salaries   
Motion: C. Levin   Second: C. Lazzaro  All in favor: Ayes  
 
R2014: 129 
Authorize tax collector to issue refund of 2014 tax overpayments 
for 559 Central Avenue and 649 Hanken Road  
Motion: C. Bogart   Second: C. Levin   All in favor: Ayes   
 
Unfinished Business  
 
 Randy Bahr-Administrator - 2014 Capital Program –  

Mr. Bahr presented a capital improvement spreadsheet.  He noted that these 
improvements were discussed with the finance committee.  One request was 
added which is the roof replacement for the Ben Maggio Recreation 
Building.  The amount to replace will be $15,000.00.  He asked if the 
council was in agreement with the capital program.  He will have the bond 
attorney prepare the bond ordinance for those items and Mr. Bahr will 
prepare the capital ordinance for the next meeting. 
The consensus of the council agreed.     
 
 2013 Certification of Annual Audit -    

 Mr. Bahr advised that the certification resolution will be on the next 
meeting agenda.  The governing body is required to sign that you have read 
the recommendations of the auditor.  
 
 
 
 



September 9, 2014  

 10

 
 
 
 
 
 
Councilwoman Pranzatelli brought up a letter dated July 1-2014 from  
Mr. Robert Fazen.  This is a second letter requesting the borough request and 
review copies of Somerset County Cultural Arts Center audits. 
She noted that the attorney responded to the first letter but not the second.   
Mr. Bahr noted that the borough or the Mayor and Council have no authority 
to audit the Somerset County Cultural Arts Center, the owner of the Brook 
Theatre.    
The borough attorney noted that it was the Somerset County Cultural and 
Heritage Commission that gave them funding.  That commission should be 
auditing them.        
Mr. Fazen felt that the council should determine if they deserve tax exempt 
status.  Mr. Bahr replied that it is the borough tax assessor to decide what 
type of organizations are tax exempt.   
 
 
UNFINISHED 
Mr. Bahr advised he received a letter from the American Legion requesting 
two representatives for the Billian Park Committee.  This committee was 
formed in an agreement between the American Legion, the Billian 
Foundation and the Borough.  
Mayor Hasting suggested Mr. Bahr as a representative and to also speak 
with the Recreation Commission to recommend a member. 
Mr. Bahr will meet with the American Legion for a kick-off meeting and to 
go over all questions.  Mr. Bahr will speak with Mr. Fazen.    
 
 
New Business 
 
 Shade Tree Commission:-  
 Chairperson Mary Patton requests discussion be carried over to the 

October Agenda meeting  
Proposed Ordinance Change to Land Use Code Section 21.9.15.d.15.d 
Incorporate the latest revision of Trees for New Jersey Streets  
 



September 9, 2014  

 11

 
 
 
 
 
 
Councilwoman Bogart reported that she attended Somerset County Cultural 
and Heritage Committee meeting.  They are moving forward with acquiring 
the Stone Bridge in Bound Brook.  The South Bound Brook representative 
for the Battle of Bound Brook Kathy Faulks is meeting at the Staats House 
on September 30th at 7 p.m. to begin the planning for the 205 Battle.  
We need a representative from Bound Brook to attend.  
Councilman Levin offered to attend the meeting.  
Police Chief advised that the department will need the schedule of events for 
2015.  C. Bogart advised that for right know it is scheduled for April 11  
April 12, 2014. 
  
Approve a Special Event Permit Application:  
 
Café Imperial- 200 Talmadge Avenue   
Event:  Celebration of Independence Day of Costa Rica  
Date:  September 21, 2014  
Time:  12 Noon-7 P.M.   
Location:  Parking Lot of the Imperial 
Motion: C. Levin  Second: C. Bogart  All in favor: Ayes   
 
Amend Special Conditions Agreement imposed on the Café Imperial for  
one (1) day event on September 21, 2014 - 
Motion: C. Pranzatelli  Second: C. Levin  All in favor: Ayes  
 
C.E.V.A. SOUTH BOUND BROOK 
Event: Christian Concert  
Date: September 21, 2014  
Time: 1-5 PM 
Location: Billian Park  
Raindate: October 12, 2014  
Motion: C. Bogart  Second: C. Pranzatelli  All in favor: Ayes    
 
 
 



September 9, 2014  

 12

 
Applicant: Fountain of Salvation Missionary Church 
Event: Special Service-Preach the Word of God 
Location: Billian Park-High Street  
Date: September 27, 2014 
Time:  12-6 p.m. 
Raindate:  October 18, 2014   
Motion: C. Petti;   Second C. Lazzaro   All in favor: Ayes  
 
Approve a Block Party Permit  
Organization: Residents of Central Avenue 
Contact: Shawn Hasting  
Location: Central Avenue between Maple Avenue & Chestnut Street  
Date: September 27, 2014 
Time: 12 Noon- 8 p.m.  
Raindate: September 28, 2014   
Motion: C. Petti  Second: C. Bogart  All in favor: Ayes   
  
Approve a Firemen’s Membership Application: None  
 
Open to the public for comments  
Carol Holub-518 West Second Street  
She asked for an explanation on the Bound Brook Hotel Notice of Charges.  
The borough attorney provided a summary.  
 
Adjourn to executive session at 9:35 p.m.  
R2014: 130 
Authorize executive session for (Negotiations; Personnel_)  
Action may be action taken after session.  
Motion:  C. Petti  Second: C. Bogart  All in favor: Ayes  
 
Agenda meeting adjourned at 10:30 p.m.  
Motion: C. Petti  Second: C. Pranzatelli  All in favor: Ayes   
 
Respectfully submitted by, 
 
Donna Marie Godleski, Borough Clerk  
 
 
 



September 9, 2014  

 13

 
 
 


